
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person needing assistance to participate in this meeting, should contact 
the Office of the Town Clerk at (920) 868-1714.  Notification 24 hours prior to a meeting will enable the Town to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to that meeting.  
 *Any item may have action taken unless otherwise specified 
 

TOWN OF GIBRALTAR 
REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING  
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 7, 2024 
GIBRALTAR TOWN CENTER 
4097 HIGHWAY 42, FISH CREEK WI 54212 
7:00 P.M. 
 
          

 
1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll call/quorum 
4. Approve the agenda          D/A 
5. Approve minutes of previous meeting(s)        D/A  
6. Committee reports (Reports are for informational purposes only)       
7. Public Comment  
8. Fire Department Recognition 
9. Destination Door County presentation         D 
10. Accept SCBA AFG grant for Fire Department        D/A 
11. Consideration of Operator’s Licenses 2024-25       D/A 
12. Special Event Request: Evergreen Miniature Golf      D/A     
13. Special Event Request Hands on Art Studio       D/A 
14. Consideration of Right of First Refusal for Hangar A-3      D/A 
15. Consideration of Sale of Hangar A-3 to Christ Walker      D/A 
16. Consideration of Lease Agreement for Hanger A-3 with Christ Walker               D/A 
17. Highland Road speed study report         D/A 
18. Approve Hill Street/Bluff Lane change order and final numbers     D/A 
19. Consideration of Amendment to extend easement for Chambers Island fire house land  D/A 

and payment of attorney fees          
20. Consideration to apply for and accept ARPA funds from County for internet    D/A   
21. Consideration to retain Coco & Kiki, Inc. to prep land for Chambers Island fire station  D/A 
22. Consideration to amend Ordinance 2022-30-Speed Limits Identified to set speed limit  D/A 
      on Choke Cherry Lane 
23. Consideration of Ordinance 2024-05-Business License Ordinance     D/A 
24. Consideration to Amend 2024 Fee Schedule       D/A 
25. County of Door estimate for excavation of White Cliff Road     D/A                                                      
26. Estimate(s) for road maintenance/crack filling        D/A 
27. Initial resolution to vacate a portion of Base Line Road –Busch property   D/A 

set October 2, 2024 public hearing date 
28. Consideration of appointment to Coastal Byways Committee     D/A 
29. 2024 Budget Committee procedure        D/A 
30. Town Zoning/Door County Zoning discussions       D/A 
31. Payment of Accounts          D/A 
32. Adjourn            D/A  

   
/s/ Steve Sohns, Chair 
 
 
DEVIATION IN ORDER MAY OCCUR 
 
 

Posted August 2, 2024      X   Fish Creek Post Office 
                     X   Fish Creek BP   
        X   Town Center Display Case 

____________________    X   Town Website     
Laura Reetz, Clerk 

     
       

               

This meeting can be attended remotely.  
To join via phone: Call 1-312-626-6799 
To join via Zoom meeting: www.zoom.us. 
 
Meeting ID: 890 8617 9156 
Password: 794409 
 
 
  
 

   
 
 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

TOWN OF GIBRALTAR 1 
REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 2 

WEDNESDAY, JULY 10, 2024  3 
GIBRALTAR TOWN CENTER 4 

4097 HIGHWAY 42, FISH CREEK WI 54212 5 
7:00 PM  6 

 7 
Approved:  8 
Call to order:  Chair Sohns called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  9 
Pledge of Allegiance: 10 
Roll call/quorum: Board members present: Chair Sohns, Supervisor Merkel, Supervisor 11 
Birmingham, Supervisor Selenica and Supervisor Chomeau.  Board member(s) absent:  None 12 
Adopt agenda: Motion:(Selenica/Merkle) to approve the agenda as presented. Carried.  13 
Approve minutes of previous meeting(s): Motion:(Selenica/Birmingham) to approve June 5, 14 
2024 Board of Review minutes as amended to correct spelling error. Carried. 15 
Motion:(Birmingham/Selenica) to approve June 5, 2024 Regular Meeting minutes as written. 16 
Carried.  Motion: (Selenica/Merkle) to approve June 17, 2024 Special Meeting minutes as written.  17 
Carried. Motion (Birmingham/Chomeau) to approve June 24, 2024 Midtown Land and Waterfront 18 
Rebuild Workshop minutes as written.  Carried. 19 
Committee Reports:  20 
Parks and Lands: Buske not present.  Thyssen reported on Parks and Lands' walking tour of trail 21 
system to be connected to Redmann property. Thyssen also reported things at lighthouse going 22 
well. Birmingham commented on disrepair of steps at Sunset Beach.  Thyssen advised there was 23 
a bid out to repair steps. Parks and Land will follow up.  24 
Fire Department/EMR: Chief Bertges provided a written report.  Call Volume:  51 calls in June, 25 
up from 34 in 2023.  Significant Events: Fire at Fish Creek hotel. Contained to a dryer.  Call for 26 
a boat taking on water, 2 occupants evacuated.  Downed trees on Chambers Island blocking the 27 
road. Hoarder house call.  CERT open house.   Projects: CERT training started in July.   Hope to 28 
have 12 members.  Events: Fireworks on the 3rd and Hair Pin Run on the 4th.  No incidents for fire 29 
department.  Public comment from Wayne Kudick regarding gas smell by Whistling Swan. Bill 30 
Weddig thanked fire department for response to dryer fire.   31 
Police Department: Thyssen reported Chief Roesch has had an extremely busy month with many 32 
calls, including EM 1 transport, suicide call, multiple MVAs, assisted with boat OWI and assisted 33 
at July fireworks event.   A few incidents at fireworks including underage drinking and a disorderly 34 
conduct.  Chief Roesch has requested a review of how fireworks event is conducted in the future. 35 
Event is not being contained and Chief Roesch is minimally staffed.  Need a broader discussion 36 
on how event is run.  37 
VFC:  Lancaster reported Concert in the Park series has started and third outdoor Fish Fri concert 38 
will be held July 19.  Event well attended.  Working on fall events Inside Outside Days September 39 
21 and Jack O' Lantern Days October 26.   40 
Noble House: No report.  41 
Airport: Drajsek reported slower June than normal probably due to rain.  Ordered more fuel and 42 
dropped fuel price by $.50 per gallon.  Started bid process with engineering firm for removal of 43 
trees and structure on lot purchased last June.  Will start in November.  Reported 4 of 5 new hangar 44 
sites are under letters of intent.  New hangar construction to start next June.   Working with Door 45 
County Zoning for approval to build another hangar at end of C row.  Reported on status of 46 
Masterplan.  It’s a 3-year process.  Reported on QR codes for tie down fees. Actively monitoring 47 
and managing hangar compliance.        48 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

Watershed: Merline reported next water testing July 19.  1 
Plan Commission:  Thyssen reported Plan Commission meeting end of the month.  Going over 2 
final draft of outdoor merchandise display ordinance.  Also working on design standards. Kudick 3 
reported Selenica working on crosswalk designs and bike and pedestrian warning signs. Kudick 4 
also reported partnering with DDC and DCEDC to see what resources are available beyond grant 5 
writing for issues such as diversifying economy and examining tourism trends and sustainability. 6 
Harbor Commission:  Harris reported dock very busy.  Staff assisted law enforcement with 7 
intoxicated boater over 4th of July. Reported on status AMI dock condition report. Pushed back to 8 
July due to AMI staffing issues.  Reported on status of dock camera purchase and installation.  9 
Harris confirmed barges allowed in mooring area when doing work for residents of Town.  10 
Door County Tourism Zone/Room tax: Weddig reported tourism zone met after annual meeting 11 
to review April numbers.   Town down some in April but up overall January through April 2024 12 
from last year.  13 
Building Committee:  Stubenvoll reported meeting scheduled for August 5, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.   14 
Coastal Byways:  No report.   15 
Broadband report:  Dennis Steigenberger reported next meeting July 17, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. with 16 
a public informational meeting at 1:00 p.m. to assist residents with signing Right of Entry 17 
agreements.   18 
County Board Representative Report: Chomeau reported the last meeting was very brief. 19 
Clerk report:  Reetz reported liquor license and operator licenses have been delivered.  Absentee 20 
ballots have been mailed.  Attending WMCA conference in Madison end of August and completed 21 
core clerk training and required election training.  Discussions regarding August 13, 2024 ballots.  22 
Treasurer Report:   Cain-Bieri reported she will be out of office the week of July 15 for 23 
continuing education training. 24 
Administrator:  Thyssen reported Hill Street and Bluff Lane project is substantially complete.  25 
Town and Cedar Corp conducted walkthrough and punch list inspection.   Some items were 26 
identified and Advanced Construction will be returning to take care of those items.  Thyssen also 27 
reported upper Bluff sewer inceptor is substantially completed.   Sewer lines were tested. Fish 28 
Creek Sanitary is receiving discharge.  Phase II is being discussed, should be underway similar to 29 
23-24 season.   Fish Creek Sanitary agreed to assist Town with grinder station issues at the beach.    30 
New building permits on pace to match 2024 Speed limit on CTH F and at CTH A and F 31 
intersection was reviewed by County and not found to need adjustment.  County currently 32 
reviewing CTH A at 42 intersection and will report to Town next week about additional speed 33 
reduction there. Kudick reported on plans for area where sewer line intercepts with Half Mile 34 
Road.  Public comment from Angela Sherman regarding speed study on County A.   35 
Chairman:  Sohns reported on status of Redmann property.  Grant funding has been secured for 36 
all 125 acres of land.     37 
Public Comment:  Public comment from Peery Duderstadt, Phyllis Schott, Bob McDonald, Bill 38 
Wolff and Karl Stubenvoll and Gale Ritchey.  Chomeau stated we need to let the public know 39 
what the public comment policy is and keep it fair and equal.   40 
Consideration of Operator’s Licenses 2024-25:   Motion (Birmingham/Merkle) to approve 41 
additional 2024-2025 Operator’s Licenses.  Carried.   42 
Special Event Request: Another Century LLC: Door County Century September 8, 2024:  43 
John Mory reported on history and particulars of event.  Motion (Selenica/Chomeau) to approve 44 
Another Century LLC special event request for the Door County Century September 8, 2024.  45 
Carried.  46 
Yellowbird Aviation Agreement: Jeff Drajesk shared background information on Andy Cashetta 47 
and his professional and personal qualifications.  Drajesk also explained terms of contact and its 48 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

benefit to the airport.  Airport Commission fully supports entering into agreement with Yellowbird. 1 
Drajesk explained it’s a public airport and legally town cannot refuse to execute the lease.  FAA 2 
is jurisdiction of public airport. The lease is more of a courtesy and a sign of respect. Thyssen 3 
confirmed Town has no governance. Supervisor discussions regarding terms of contract and 4 
determination of price of contract.  Question from Chomeau regarding what airport and Town can 5 
control and if an agreement is even required.  Birmingham shared position on contract.  Public 6 
comment from Judith Kalb, Linda Birmingham, Bill Wolff, Gale Ritchey, Don Kravitz, Sally 7 
Everhardus, Beverly Conroy, Kathy Beck, Angela Sherman and Wayne Kudick.  Statement from 8 
Cashetta to Board and public. Motion (Merkle/Selenica) to enter agreement with Yellowbird. 9 
Merkle aye, Selenica aye, Sohns aye, Chomeau nay, Birmingham nay.  Carried.  10 
Consideration of Right of First Refusal for Hangar D-1: Motion (Birmingham/Selenica) to 11 
waive right of first refusal for Hangar D-1.  Carried.   12 
Consideration of Sale of Hangar D-1 to Tim Halbrook: Motion (Birmingham/Merkle) to 13 
approve the sale of Hangar D-1 to Tim Halbrook. Carried. 14 
Consideration of Lease Agreement for Hangar D-1 with Tim Halbrook: Motion 15 
(Merkle/Sohns) to approve lease agreement for Hangar D-1 with Tim Halbrook. Carried. 16 
3-way stop sign at Hill and Bluff:  Thyssen reported the combined reconstruction and added 17 
vehicle traffic to the area has caused several close calls and near misses for vehicles exiting from 18 
the stop sign on Bluff Lane heading east. Thyssen and Chief Roesch reviewed the intersection and 19 
agree it has created a hazard for Bluff Lane traffic.  Chief Roesch supports adding a stop sign to 20 
the North bound travelling lane making that intersection a 3-way stop.  Town has extra signs/posts 21 
and maintenance will install the sign during regular hours for no fiscal impact on Town. Motion 22 
(Merkle/Birmingham) to add stop sign to north-bound Lane of Hill Street.  Carried. 23 
Island View culvert and entrance update:   Discussion on next steps for Island View culvert and 24 
entrance off Juddville Road. Island View Road inspection revealed the entrance point needs 25 
additional drainage and access off Juddville should be improved.  Island View has received LRIP 26 
funding and improvements will need to be completed in the next year to remain eligible to collect 27 
the funds. Cedar Corp assisting Town staff in designing better runoff design and assisting with 28 
culvert installation.  Denniss Steigenberger presented options for runoff and culvert.  Comment 29 
from Bill Weddig. Motion (Chomeau/Merkle) to move forward with design as presented by Cedar 30 
Corp to install a culvert and fix the entrance to Island View Road. Carried. 31 
Highland Road request for speed study: Resident requested Town Board consider lowering the 32 
speed limit from 45 mph on South Highland.  Lowering the speed limit would require a speed 33 
study. Chief Roesch can complete the speed study. Budget has funds line itemed for signage.  34 
Motion (Birmingham/Merkle) to move forward with Highland Road speed study. Carried. 35 
Consideration to Amend Ordinance 2022-11 Animals:  Staff recommendation to Amend 36 
Ordinance 2022-11 Animals to include the following language: " Owners of dogs who are involved 37 
in an incident where any dog makes an unprovoked attack on a person or other animal that causes 38 
bodily injury or death and occurs in a place other than the enclosure in which the dog is kept, is 39 
liable for additional penalties up to $500 set by the Town of Gibraltar fee Schedule under this 40 
ordinance. Motion (Merkle/Chomeau) to adopt draft Ordinance 2022-11 as revised to change 41 
"dog" to "animal."  Carried.  Public comment from Angela Sherman.  42 
Consideration to Amend 2024 Fee Schedule—Animals:   Motion (Chomeau/Selenica) to amend 43 
2024 Fee Schedule to approve a fee of $500 for maiming or killing another animal. Carried.  44 
Road review and maintenance and repairs: Town conducted road review this spring and 45 
identified several roads needing crack filling in 2024.  Staff recommends completing outsourced 46 
crack filling on Spruce Street, Main to Cottage Row, Maple Street to the dock and the dock parking 47 
area, High Ridge Road from EE to the quarry entrance, airport parking lot and Town Center 48 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

parking lot.  Staff will seek bids from crack filling companies and use the lowest bidder. Motion 1 
(Sohns/Chomeau) to approve pursuing estimates for crack filling of the above identified roads, 2 
and allowing staff to proceed with the maintenance effort if the estimates are less than the proposed 3 
budget. Airport to pay for parking lot. Carried.  4 
eBike proposal:  Thyssen reported Jeff requested matter be tabled until he can present the Board 5 
with more information.      6 
Kinsey House disposition:  Thyssen provided estimate of cost of repairs to Kinsey House and 7 
advised on discussions with lawyer as to deed restrictions in the event of a sale.  Supervisor 8 
discussions regarding maintenance costs, proposed use of building and need to rezone if kept.  9 
Supervisor discussions on whether to keep, lease or sell.  Public comment from Amy Wilde, 10 
Phyllis Schott, Wayne Kudick.  Motion (Selenica/Birmingham) to prepare to sell the Kinsey house 11 
with deed restrictions and reduced lot size, to be presented for approval to Door County Zoning. 12 
Sohns aye, Selenica aye, Birmingham aye.  Chomeau nay, Merkle nay. Carried.    13 
Set date for special meeting of electors and elector request: Motion (Chomeau/Selenica) to call 14 
a special meeting of the electors on August 6, 2024 at 6 pm at Old Towne Hall.  Carried.  Motion 15 
( Birmingham/Selenica ) to approve the following proposed resolution to the electors “To approve 16 
a resolution authorizing the Town Board of the Town of Gibraltar to solicit bids for sale and 17 
removal of town real property*; specifically, the 3 cottages located at 4148 Main St Fish Creek, 18 
WI 54212 (formerly known as The Shorehaven, The Holiday, and The Coach House cottages) 19 
*buildings only, not real estate”  Carried.  20 
Chambers Island review set date:  Discussions regarding setting a date for review of roads on 21 
Chamber’s Island.  Review scheduled for July 25 at 3:00 pm.   22 
Capital funds for Redmann land acquisition: Treasurer provided recap of funds immediately 23 
available for Redmann land acquisition pending receipt of grant monies. Motion 24 
Merkle/Birmingham to use capital funds for land acquisition as proposed. Carried.   25 
Payment of Accounts:  Motion (Birmingham/Selenica) to approve payment of bills. Carried. 26 
Adjourn to closed session according to Wisconsin State Statutes 19.85(1)(c): Motion 27 
(Selenica/Sohns) to adjourn to closed session at 10:00 p.m. via roll call vote. (Birmingham, Sohns, 28 
Chomeau, Selenica, Merkle.) Carried.  29 
Reconvene to open session pursuant to State Statute 19.85(2) to take any action(s) or adopt 30 
resolution on issues discussed in closed session:  Motion: (Birmingham/Selenica) to reconvene 31 
open session at 10:16 p.m. Carried.   32 
Approve action taken in closed session. Motion (Merkle/Birmingham) to approve staff 33 
compensation recommendation. Carried.  34 
Adjourn: Motion (Chomeau/Selenica) to adjourn at 10:18 p.m. Carried  35 
 36 
   37 
Respectfully submitted, 38 
Laura Reetz, Clerk 39 



 

| P a g e  
 

TOWN OF GIBRALTAR 
SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING 

THURSDAY, JULY 25, 2024 
GIBRALTAR TOWN DOCK 

4150 MAPLE STREET 
FISH CREEK, WI 54212 

3:00 PM 
 
 

Approved:  
 
Call to order:  Chair Sohns called the special meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.  
 
Roll call/quorum: 
Board members present: Chair Sohns, Supervisor Merkel and Supervisor Birmingham.  Supervisor 
Chomeau and Supervisor Selenica absent.  
Also Present: Administrator Thyssen  
 
Agenda/proper notice/adopt agenda:  Motion (Merkel/Birmingham) to approve the agenda as presented. 
Carried.  
 
Consideration of letter of approval Peach Barn Brewery doing business in Peninsula State 
Park: Administrator Thyssen explained that due to a change in licensing laws, the law asks for 
secondary approval from a municipality for a business selling alcohol in a State Park.  Commissioner 
discussions with Jason White, owner of Peach Barn.  Public comment from Myrv Somerhalder.  Motion 
(Merkle, Birmingham) for Town Administration to send letter of approval of Peach Barn Brewery doing business in 
Peninsula State Park.  Carried.   
 
Adjourn:  Motion: (Merkle/Sohns) to adjourn at 3:08 p.m. Carried  
           
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Laura Reetz, Clerk  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



To: Town Board 

From: Fire Department and Staff 

Request: 

The Fire Department would like the Town Board to accept the recently awarded Assistance to Fire 
Fighter grant (AFG) for the amount of $30000 .  The grant was for self contained breathing 
apparatus(SCBA.) 

Background: 

AFG is a federal grant that aids emergency services throughout the nation.  I applied this spring for 
assistance in purchasing equipment for our new engine, including SCBA’s.  We were only awarded the 
SCBA’s as they are a high priority for AFG. 

Analysis: 

The equipment is necessary and helps the town’s future budget as our current SCBA’s will need to be 
replaced in 10 years. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of grant funding. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The grant funding will have no fiscal impact to our current budget.  Our 2% dues were increased this 
year so funds are available for the 5% ($1,428.58) match.  A budget adjustment will be needed, and we 
will have to front the money as this is a reimbursement. 



Award Letter

U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Washington, D.C. 20472

Effective date: 07/08/2024

Andrew Bertges

TOWN OF GIBRALTAR

P.O. BOX 850

FISH CREEK, WI 54212

EMW-2023-FG-04043

Dear Andrew Bertges,

Congratulations on behalf of the Department of Homeland Security. Your application submitted for

the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 Assistance to Firefighters Grant (FG) Grant funding opportunity has

been approved in the amount of $28,571.42 in Federal funding. As a condition of this grant, you

are required to contribute non-Federal funds equal to or greater than 5.00% of the Federal funds

awarded, or $1,428.58 for a total approved budget of $30,000.00. Please see the FY 2023 FG

Notice of Funding Opportunity for information on how to meet this cost share requirement.

Before you request and receive any of the Federal funds awarded to you, you must establish

acceptance of the award through the FEMA Grants Outcomes (FEMA GO) system. By accepting

this award, you acknowledge that the terms of the following documents are incorporated into the

terms of your award:

Summary Award Memo - included in this document

Agreement Articles - included in this document

Obligating Document - included in this document

2023 FG Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) - incorporated by reference

Please make sure you read, understand, and maintain a copy of these documents in your official

file for this award.

Sincerely,

PAMELA WILLIAMS

Assistant Administrator, Grant Programs



Summary Award Memo

Program: Fiscal Year 2023 Assistance to Firefighters Grant

Recipient: TOWN OF GIBRALTAR

UEI-EFT: LC34F2SWUL18

DUNS number: 040397312

Award number: EMW-2023-FG-04043

Summary description of award

The purpose of the Assistance to Firefighters Grant program is to protect the health and safety of

the public and firefighting personnel against fire and fire-related hazards. After careful

consideration, FEMA has determined that the recipient's project or projects submitted as part of

the recipient's application and detailed in the project narrative as well as the request details

section of the application - including budget information - was consistent with the Assistance to

Firefighters Grant Program's purpose and was worthy of award.

Except as otherwise approved as noted in this award, the information you provided in your

application for Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 Assistance to Firefighters Grant funding is incorporated into

the terms and conditions of this award. This includes any documents submitted as part of the

application.

Amount awarded table

The amount of the award is detailed in the attached Obligating Document for Award.

The following are the budgeted estimates for object classes for this award (including Federal

share plus your cost share, if applicable):



Approved scope of work

After review of your application, FEMA has approved the below scope of work. Justifications are

provided for any differences between the scope of work in the original application and the

approved scope of work under this award. You must submit scope or budget revision requests for

FEMA's prior approval, via an amendment request, as appropriate per 2 C.F.R. § 200.308 and

the FY2023 FG NOFO.

Approved request details:

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

Object Class Total

Personnel $0.00

Fringe benefits $0.00

Travel $0.00

Equipment $30,000.00

Supplies $0.00

Contractual $0.00

Construction $0.00

Other $0.00

Indirect charges $0.00

Federal $28,571.42

Non-federal $1,428.58

Total $30,000.00

Program Income $0.00



Equipment

SCBA: SCBA Unit includes: Harness/Backpack, Face Piece and

2 cylinders

DESCRIPTION

SCBA to fill 4 seat positions. only need 4 bottles

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL BUDGET

CLASS

EquipmentCost 1 4 $7,500.00 $30,000.00

Hose (Attack/Supply)

DESCRIPTION

1.75 Structure hose

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL BUDGET

CLASS

EquipmentCost 1 0 $0.00 $0.00

CHANGE FROM APPLICATION

Quantity from 16 to 0

Unit price from $355.00 to $0.00

JUSTIFICATION

This reduction is due to the score your project received relative to other projects.



Appliance(s)/Nozzle(s)

DESCRIPTION

1.5" Nozzles to match existing nozzles

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL BUDGET

CLASS

EquipmentCost 1 0 $0.00 $0.00

CHANGE FROM APPLICATION

Quantity from 2 to 0

Unit price from $1,500.00 to $0.00

JUSTIFICATION

This reduction is due to the score your project received relative to other projects.

Hose (Attack/Supply)

DESCRIPTION

2.5" attack line

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL BUDGET

CLASS

EquipmentCost 1 0 $0.00 $0.00

CHANGE FROM APPLICATION

Quantity from 9 to 0

Unit price from $440.00 to $0.00

JUSTIFICATION

This reduction is due to the score your project received relative to other projects.



Appliance(s)/Nozzle(s)

DESCRIPTION

Ground monitor. It can go anywhere a hand line goes while delivering a much higher volume

of water and be operated by a single person

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL BUDGET

CLASS

EquipmentCost 1 0 $0.00 $0.00

CHANGE FROM APPLICATION

Quantity from 1 to 0

Unit price from $3,500.00 to $0.00

JUSTIFICATION

This reduction is due to the score your project received relative to other projects.

IDLH Monitoring Equipment

DESCRIPTION

5 gas monitor- explosive gas sensor, hydrogen sulfide, hydrogen cyanide, Oxygen and

carbon monoxide. These are the gases we would encounter. Existing meter has 2 bad

sensors and manufacturer states its cheaper and most cost effective to replace as they do

not make the Drager 2000 anymore

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL BUDGET
CLASS

EquipmentCost 1 0 $0.00 $0.00

CHANGE FROM APPLICATION

Quantity from 1 to 0

Unit price from $2,500.00 to $0.00

JUSTIFICATION

This reduction is due to the score your project received relative to other projects.



Generator - Portable

DESCRIPTION

2200 watt minimum inverter generator. New engine does not have a generator. Our

equipment is moving to electric and battery. The generator is required to back up our

battery fan, chargers and power tools.

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL BUDGET

CLASS

EquipmentCost 1 0 $0.00 $0.00

CHANGE FROM APPLICATION

Quantity from 1 to 0

Unit price from $1,500.00 to $0.00

JUSTIFICATION

This reduction is due to the score your project received relative to other projects.

Thermal Imaging Camera (Must be NFPA 1801 Compliant)

DESCRIPTION

Add to the new engine as our other on the old engine camera is outdated and we can not

get batteries for. We have one battery left

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL BUDGET
CLASS

EquipmentCost 1 0 $0.00 $0.00

CHANGE FROM APPLICATION

Quantity from 1 to 0

Unit price from $8,800.00 to $0.00

JUSTIFICATION

This reduction is due to the score your project received relative to other projects.



Hose (Attack/Supply)

DESCRIPTION

5" supply hose

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL BUDGET

CLASS

EquipmentCost 1 0 $0.00 $0.00

CHANGE FROM APPLICATION

Quantity from 5 to 0

Unit price from $1,400.00 to $0.00

JUSTIFICATION

This reduction is due to the score your project received relative to other projects.



To: Town Board 

From: Staff 

Request: 

Approve additional 2024-25 Operator License 

Background:   

2024-2025 Operator Licenses were approved at the June 2024 Town Board Meeting.  An application 
for an operator's license was received on July 11, 2024 for an employee of Lautenbach's Orchard.    
This is a renewal. 

Analysis: 

Staff has reviewed and done a background checks for the renewal application.      

Recommendation: 

Staff has reviewed and supports this request. 

 



2024-2025 Operator’s License 

01. Cameron Pinkham, Peninsula Gun Club (Renewal) 
02. Cory Diltz, Peninsula Gun Club (Renewal) 
03. Timothy Alberts, Peninsula Gun Club (Renewal) 
04. Rachel Stollenwork, Peninsula Gun Club (Renewal) 
05. Connie Pahl, White Gull (Renewal) 
06. Brady Seland, White Gull Inn (Renewal 
07. David Perkins, White Gull Inn (Renewal) 
08. Scot Kositzke, White Gull Inn (Renewal) 
09. Patrick McMurtry, White Gull Inn (Renewal) 
10. Juan Gonzalez, Hill St (New) 
11. Kris�n Scheller, Julie’s (New) 
12. Hannah Paulus, Hill St (New) 
13. Hunter Jonas, Wild Tomato (New) 
14. Logan Thomas, Hill St (New) 
15. Shane Krueger, Hill St (Renewal) 
16. Brian Jenson, Barringers (Renewal) 
17. Jared Steffen, Barringers (New) 
18. Laura Anschutz, Peninsula Gun Club (Renewal) 
19. Melanie H. Hass, Peninsula Gun Club (Renewal) 
20. Travis Witalison, Peninsula Gun Club (Renewal) 
21. Cody Hoffmann, Peninsula Gun Club (Renewal) 
22. Marcella Krause, Ketle Black (New) 
23. Paul J. Cook, Peninsula Players (Renewal) 
24. Joshua L. Williams, Peninsula Players (Renewal 
25. Logan Daniel Devroy, Hill Street (Renewal) 
26. Regan L. Spangler, Pelle�er's (Renewal) 
27. Gabriel Le�e, Pelle�er's (Renewal) 
28. Sheila Boeck, Pelle�er's (Renewal)  
29. Steven Devroy, Welcker's Lounge (Renewal) 
30. Kevin Korte, Hill Street (Renewal) 
31. Rebecca Stockhaus, Peninsula Players (new) 
32. Garret Conard, Peninsula Players (renewal)  
33. Michael Mitchell, Peninsula Players (renewal) 



34. Carrie Viste, Lautenbach’s (Renewal) 
35. Renee Iding, Lautenbach’s (Renewal) 
36. Erin Lautenbach, Lautenbach’s (Renewal) 
37. Mark D. Romanowski-Kemp, Lautenbach's (New) 
38. Kennedy Neuzil, Alpaca to Apparel (Renew) 
39. Brian Vogeltanz, Alpaca to Apparel (Renew) 
40. Rebecca Fairchild, Alpaca to Apparel (New)  
41. Brandon Fabry, Bayside (Renewal) 
42. Rita M. Dorsch, Lautenbach's (Renewal) 

 













To: Town Board 

From: Staff 

Request: 

Special event request from Hands On Art Studio for a pop-up art market on August 9 and September 28 
from 10 am to 3 pm.  

Background: 

Karon Ohm from Hands On Art Studio is requesting to hold a pop-up art fair on the Hands On lawn space 
at 3655 Peninsula Players Road.  The vendors will be using tables and tents.  All vendors have obtained 
seller permits from the Town.   

Analysis: 

The event will take place during Hands On's normal business hours.  Hands On has sufficient off-street 
parking space to accommodate vendors and any additional customer parking the event will draw.   
Karen is not requesting any special signage to advertise the event.   

Recommendation: 

Staff has reviewed this request and recommends approval of both events. 

Fiscal impact: 

None. 

 





To: Town Board 

From: Staff 

Request: 

Approval of the Airport agreement for Hanger A-3 sale to Christ Walker with lease 

Background: 

The Town of Gibraltar in all Airport hangar transactions is given the right of first refusal.  

This is a standard practice, currently the Town Board has no need for any hangers, Staff would 
recommend passing on the hanger.  

Passing on the hanger allows the Airport Commission to sale and lease the hanger. 

Analysis: 

The Town currently has no need for hanger space. 

Staff have received no complaints about Mr.  Christ leasing the hangar space. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the Town board decline the hangar space and award the sale and lease to Mr. Christ. 

Fiscal Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact to their request. 































To: Town Board 

From: Staff 

Request: 

Speed determination of Highland Road form Highway A to Shady Lane 

Background: 

Town residents have asked to have a speed study conducted on Highland Road at the intersection of 
County Highway A and highland to the intersection of Highland and Shady Lane  

Town board directed staff at the July meeting to conduct a study of the current speed of the road and 
determine if a change is warranted. 

Analysis: 

Police Chief Roesch for four weeks completed a variety of tests to gather information including speed 
boards, travel tracking (testing various Speeds entering and exiting the intersections) visual inspections, 
and review of driveway distances. 

The results of the study indicate, the driveway spacing doesn’t meet the state distance indicator for 
reduction, the angle of the entry off County Highway A currently shows speeds under the posted limits, 
and the speeds remain under the posted limits past Shady Lane.  

Because of the data acquired, and the state speed recommendation standards, Chief Roesch believes 
there is no reason to change the current posted limits. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommend following the state guidelines and keeping the limits the same. 

Fiscal Impact:  

Chief Roesch time and efforts were covered in the police budget. 



















To: Town Board 

From: Staff 

Request: 

Approve the final payment (less hold funds) to Advance Construction and approve change the final 
numbers for the project. 

Background: 

The Town of Gibraltar completed a reconstruction of Hill St. and Bluff Lane. To solicit the best bids the 
town proceeded with measured quantities. This allows the town to be credited when quantities are less 
and pay for those that exceed the proposed quantities. This process eliminates padded estimates 
because of uncertainty. 

The estimate contains a contingency to cover any unexpected changes or overages. 

Analysis: 

Cedar Corporation has completed the final quantities measurements and has presented the final change 
order and payout, less the hold for the remaining uncompleted items.  

Cedar reports the project has come in under the projected project costs and has inspected the project 
for workmanship. Cedar is satisfied with the numbers and the workmanship, however there are a few 
items to be rectified. Cedar is confident in the board approving the final change order. 

Recommendation: 

Staff and Cedar Corporation recommend accepting the final change order of quantities used and 
authorizing the final payment. 

Fiscal Impact:  

The project amount s was allocated in the 2024 budget and the funds will be removed from these 
account line items. 











To: Town Board 

From: Staff 

Request: 

Approve the extension agreement with Mr. Blahnik to accept the land donation to build a fire station 
building. 

Background: 

Mr. Blahnik who owns property on Chambers Island has donated a portion of his property to the Town 
of Gibraltar to construct a fire equipment housing building.  

The contract has expired, and Mr. Blahnik has agreed to extend the substantial completion date for the 
station by 1 year. 

The town staff has been actively trying to complete this project for three years. Logistics has been the 
biggest hurdle; however, we are ready to move to the next stage of clearing the lot and prepping for a 
slab. 

Analysis: 

This is the best location for the new building and the land is donated. The extension will give time to 
complete the project. 

Recommendation:  

Fire Department and Staff support signing the extension agreement amendment. 

Fiscal Impact: 

$500.00 to cover the legal costs and paperwork. This will be taken out of the town’s legal fees line item. 

 

 

  



To: Town Board 

From: Staff 

Request: 

Apply for and accept the Door County ARPA funds for broadband 

Background: 

Door County has allocated to each community a dollar amount per qualified resident to assist with 
installation of high-speed internet. 

Analysis: 

The Town of Gibraltar is in a position to ask for these funds and put this toward reduction of the total 
contract amount 

The staff has talked with Bertram about collection of these funds, and it will not interfere with future 
grant applications. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends we apply for and accept the ARPA funds from Door County. 

Fiscal Impact: 

All the funds received will go toward reduction of the contract amount to install high speed internet in 
the town. 









To: Town board 

From: Staff 

Recommendation: 

Amend Ordinance 2022-30 speed limits to set Choke Cherry Speed limit 

Background: 

The private road Choke Cherry has been given to the town and the Town has accepted the road. 

The road named Choke Cherry will keep the name however will be the care and responsibility of the 
town to maintain and govern traffic control. 

Analysis: 

Most urban neighborhood streets in Gibraltar are set at 25 MPH the residents of Hidden Blossom have 
asked to have the limit set at 20 MPH to match Cottage Row. The residents cite several factors for their 
request.  

1. With the new subdivision there will be extra vehicle traffic coming and going on Choke Cherry 
Lane.  

2. Many of the residents walk Choke Cherry Lane with no other paved options available. 
3. The new park will bring walkers and hikers and more vehicle traffic. 
4. The new construction and bluff lots will create additional “looky Loos” who will not be paying 

full attention to the drive. 

Chief Roesch said he can support the request from the Hidden Blossom residents because of the volume 
of foot traffic and vehicle traffic. 

Recommendation: 

Staff support 20 or 25 MPH but not any higher. 

Fiscal Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact for this request. 



TOWN OF GIBRALTAR 

ORDINANCE 2022-30 

SPEED LIMITS IDENTIFIED AND TRAFFIC FLOW 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Ordinance 2022-30 Identified in the code of ordinances as 10.125 shall repeal and replace any 
previous ordinance(s) in whole or part, or any other ordinances contradicting to this new 
ordinance. 

The Town Board of Gibraltar, in the County of Door, State of Wisconsin, does hereby ordain as follows: 

Purpose The purpose of this ordinance is to identify and set limits of speed on town owned and 
operated roadways. 

State Statutes Adopted – Authority 

The Board of Supervisors of the Town of Gibraltar is granted authority for adopting this ordinance under 
its general 60.10(2)(c) and 60.22(3), Wisconsin Statutes. The Town Board Adopts this Ordinance under 
its general village powers authority and 66.1014 of the Wisconsin Statutes, 2917 Act 59. 

General Provisions 

On the basis of a certain engineering and traffic investigation heretofore  
made, the speeds on the highways or parts thereof indicated below are determined and     
declared to be reasonable and safe pursuant to the provisions of Section 349.11, Wisconsin    
Statutes, and subject to the approval of the State Highway Commission, shall be the speed     
limits on such highways, streets or parts thereof upon erecting and placing appropriate signs  
giving notice of such limits.  No person shall drive a vehicle in excess of such speed limits. 
 

A.  The speed limit shall be forty-five (45) miles per hour on the following roads:  
 

1. Peninsula Players Road, from its intersection with County Trunk Highway A, to its 
intersection with Hwy 42. 

 
2. Spring Road, from its intersection with Peninsula Players Road, to its intersection with 

Wandering Road.  
 

3. Juddville Road, from its intersection with County Trunk Highway A, to its intersection with 
White Cliff Road. 

 
4. Gibraltar Road, from its intersection with County Highway Trunk A, to its intersection with 

Maple Grove Road.  
 
5. Maple Grove Road, from its intersection with County F to Gibraltar Road. 

 
6. Maple Grove East, from its intersection with County Trunk Highway F, to its intersection 

with West Meadow Road.  
 



7. West Meadow Road, that part belonging to the Town of Gibraltar lying within its 
intersection with Maple Grove East, to its intersection with County Trunk Highway F.  

 
8. Highland Road, from its intersection with County Trunk Highway A, to its intersection with 

County Trunk Highway F.  
 

9. Little Marsh Road, from its intersection with County A, to its intersection with County EE.   
 

10. Wandering Road, from its intersection with Spring Road, to its intersection with Peninsula 
Players Road. (Ordinance No. 2002-02). 

 
       B.   The speed limit shall be Forty (40) miles per hour on the following roads:  
 

1. Maple Grove Road from its intersection with Gibraltar Road, to the border of the Village of 
Ephraim (Ephraim-Gibraltar Airport driveway). 

 
       C.   The speed limit shall be Thirty-five (35) miles per hour on the following roads:  
 

1. Gibraltar Road, from its intersection with County Trunk Highway A, to its Intersection with 
County Trunk Highway 42.  

 
2. Spring Road, from its intersection with Wandering Road, to its intersection with County Trunk 

Highway F.  
 
3. Peninsula Players Road, from its intersection with Hwy 42 to its intersection with Gibraltar 

Bluff Rd. 
 
D.  The speed limit shall be Twenty-five (25) miles per hour on the following roads:  

 
1. Streets in the unincorporated village of Fish Creek, excluding State Trunk Highway 42, 

extended easterly, more or less, to a point 200 feet northeast of its intersection with Gibraltar 
Road.  

 
2. Daisy Patch Road, from its intersection with Highway 42, to its intersection with Wildflower 

Patch Road. 
 
3. White Cliff Road, from its intersection with Juddville Road, southerly to the Town of Egg 

Harbor boundary. 
 
4. Cottage Row Road, from its intersection with Gibraltar Bluff Road, to its intersection with 

State Highway 42. 
 
5. Gibraltar Bluff Road  
 
6. Peninsula Players Road from its intersection with Gibraltar Bluff Road to termini (water). 

 
 



E.  The speed limit shall be Twenty (20) miles per hour on the following roads:  
 
 

1. Cottage Row Road, from its intersection with Spruce Street, to its intersection with Gibraltar 
Bluff Road.  

2. Choke Cherry Lane, from STH 42 to Termini. 
 

      F.  Traffic Flow, One-Way Street Identified 
1.  Spruce Street shall be a one-way traffic flow directional street from Highway 42 to Maple     
      Street, traffic to flow northboard. 

 
 
 
 
Penalty 

Any person found guilty of violating this ordinance or any part of this ordinance, shall be subject to a 
forfeiture of not less than $50.00, nor more than $500.00, together with costs of prosecution. Failure to 
make payment of such forfeiture and costs of prosecution shall subject the individual to imprisonment 
in the County Jail until said forfeiture is paid, but not to exceed thirty (30) days.  

Enforcement 

A. Enforcement shall be by citation. 
B. Schedule of Deposits. Deposits shall be made in cash, money orders, or certified check to the 

Clerk of Door County Circuit Court, who shall provide a receipt to the other office and the 
amount of the forfeiture schedule shall be as stated above or such amount that the Circuit Court 
of Door County hereafter affixes.  

C. Any person, firm or corporation, violating any of the subsections of this ordinance, may stipulate 
to the guilt or no contest and may pay to the Clerk of Court, a bond according to a schedule 
prescribed by the Circuit Court of Door County, which is presently set forth above. Such 
stipulation will make it unnecessary for the subject charged to appear in court, and will act as a 
basis for the court to enter judgment and order forfeiture of the bond. Forfeitures, penalty 
assessments, costs and fees shall be disbursed as provided in Wis. Stat. § 66.12.  

D.  Adoption of this ordinance does not preclude the Town Board from adopting any other 
ordinance or providing for the enforcement of any other law or ordinance relating to the same 
or other matter, and issuance of a forfeiture hereunder, shall not preclude the Town or any 
authorized officer from preceding under any other ordinance or law or by any other 
enforcement method to enforce any ordinance, regulation or order. 

Reference to Statutes  

Reference to specific statutory sections whenever used in this ordinance, shall mean Wisconsin Statutes 
as amended, modified, repealed or otherwise altered by the State Legislature. 

Severability 



If any of this Ordinance be declared invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
a decision shall not affect the validity of any other provisions of this ordinance. 

 

Amended this 7th day of August 2024 

 

TOWN BOARD FOR THE TOWN OF GIBRALTAR 

 

 __  ________ 

Steve Sohns, Town Chairperson  John Selenica, Town Supervisor 

 

 __  ____________________ 

Vinni Chomeau, Town Supervisor Jayson Merkel, Town Supervisor 

 

 __ 

Tom Birmingham, Town Supervisor  

 

Attest: 

 

  

Laura Reetz, Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 













To:  Town Board 
From:  Staff 
 
 
Request: 
 
Amend the town fee schedule to include a $500 forfeiture for 2nd noncompliance notification of failure to 
comply with Ordinance 2024-05-Business License. 
 
Background: 
 
The STR ordinance provides for an additional fee for a second notification of noncompliance with the STR 
ordinance.  Ordinance 2024-05 and the amended fee schedule provides for a similar fee and penalty 
structure for business licenses.  
 
Analysis: 
 
The fee schedule needs to be updated to reflect enactment of Ordinance 2024-05-Business License. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends creating a $500 fee for 2nd noncompliance notification of failure to comply with 
Ordinance 2024-05-Business License. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There is no fiscal impact to this request.  
 
 



Town of Gibraltar 

2024 Fee and Forfeiture Schedule 

 
The following fees for satisfying record requests under s. 19.35, Wisconsin Statutes, are as established. 

General fees: 

a. Cost of transcription and reproduction                                                              $ .35 per page 
b. Cost of locating a record file                                                                                Clerk’s loaded wage 
c. Cost of shipping or mailing requests                                                                   actual costs 
d. Town services requested for special event                                                  $25.00 per department 
e. Credit card fee        3% 
f. (NSF) returned check fee      $50.00 

The following fees are established for the referenced Town of Gibraltar ordinances: 

Emergency services: 

Fire rescue medical assistance calls                               $0 

False alarms                          1st free 1 per year 2nd and consecutive $50.00 

 

Chapter 10-Orderly Conduct: 

10.01  -  State Traffic laws adopted.                                               based on state forfeiture schedule 

10.125 – Town speed limits adopted                                             based on state forfeiture schedule 

10.02  -  Discharging firearms within Harbor Limits                          Municipal Forfeiture  $175.30* 

10.03  -  Throwing or Shooting arrows, stones, and other missiles.  Municipal Forfeiture  $200.00 

10.04  -  Sale and discharge of fireworks restricted.                            Municipal Forfeiture  $200.00 

10.05  -  Obstructing streets and sidewalks prohibited.                      Municipal Forfeiture  $200.00 

10.06  -  Disorderly conduct prohibited.                                                 Municipal Forfeiture  $235.00 

10.07  -  Disorderly Conduct with a motor vehicle.                              Municipal Forfeiture  $235.00 

10.08  -  Urinating or defecating on property.                                       Municipal Forfeiture  $235.00 

10.09  -  Unreasonable, excessive, and unnecessary noise                 Municipal Forfeiture  $235.00 

10.10  -  Obedience to officers.                                                                Municipal Forfeiture  $235.00 



10.11  -  Firearms in public buildings                                                       Municipal Forfeiture  $235.00 

10.12  -  Reserved 

10.13  -  Loitering Prohibited.                                                                   Municipal Forfeiture  $200.00 

10.14  -  Destruction of private property.                                               Municipal Forfeiture  $235.00 

10.15  -  Alcohol beverage possession/ consumption                          Municipal Forfeiture  $200.00 

                In public places prohibited 

10.16  -  Littering prohibited.                                                                     Municipal Forfeiture  $200.00 

10.17  -  Possession of Marijuana.                                                            Municipal Forfeiture  $300.00 

10.18  -  Permitted parking lots                                Municipal Forfeiture  $50.00/$100.00 handicapped 

10.19  -  Parking prohibited                                       Municipal Forfeiture $50.00/$100.00 handicapped 

10.20  -  Illegal dumping                                                                             Municipal Forfeiture  $300.00 

10.21  -  Use of municipal docks.                                                              Municipal Forfeiture  $200.00 

10.22  -  Petty theft.                                                                                    Municipal Forfeiture  $235.00 

10.23  - Trespass to land, buildings or other premises.                        Municipal Forfeiture  $235.00 

10.24  -  Possession of drug paraphernalia.                                            Municipal Forfeiture  $275.00 

10.25  -  Purchase or possession of tobacco products prohibited      Municipal Forfeiture  $200.00 

10.26  -  Restrictions sale, gift, of cigarette or tobacco products       Municipal Forfeiture  $200.00 

10.27  -  Possession of tobacco, vapor products by minors        See Juvenile bond schedule 10.40 

10.28  -  Smoking, tobacco use where prohibited                                 Municipal Forfeiture  $200.00 

10.29  -  Sign, flag display when/where restricted                                Municipal Forfeiture  $100.00 

10.30 – Truancy                                                                                   See Juvenile bond schedule 10.40 

10.31 – Animals                                                                                           Municipal Forfeiture $200.00 

    Municipal Forfeiture $500.00  
      Death of animal  
 

10.32 – Adopting other State Statutes                                                As listed in state bond schedule 

10.33 – Peddlers                                                                                          Municipal Forfeiture $100.00* 

Ordinance 2024-03 Regulation of Fire/Burn Permits  Municipal Forfeiture $50.00  
violation w/burn permit 
 

Municipal Forfeiture $150.00  
violation without burn permit 



 
 

 

Ord 2023-03- Reg the Application of Coal Tar Sealant Prod      Municipal Forfeiture $250  
                                                                                                                          Individual 
 

             Municipal Forfeiture $1000 
                           Contractor 
 
Ord 2024-04- Waterfowl Feeding Prohibited        Municipal Forfeiture $50  
         

The Town of Gibraltar will operate a fee schedule designated for individuals under the age of 17, who 
are in violation of any town ordinances listed in the code of ordinances.  Forfeitures under the 
Juvenile Bond category are as follows.  

Juveniles ages 12-14                  Juveniles 14-16                        Juveniles 16-17 

1st offence $25.00                       1st offence $50.00                   1st offence $75.00 

2nd offence $50.00                      2nd offence $75.00                  2nd offence $100.00 

3rd offence $100.00                    3rd offence $100.00                 3rd offence $125.00 

 

Traffic Utility Fee* 

Traffic Utility adopted by Ordinance 2022-34* 

Traffic Utility Fee set by Resolution 2022-08*     

 

Building Permits – Chapter  

Driveway permits                                                                                                  $60.00 

Sanitary permits (Paid to FCSD) Affidavit required for inspections               

Building permits (paid directly to building inspector)           

Administrative fee       $75.00 

Erosion control                                                                                      $75.00 

Fire Impact fees                                                                                     TBD 

Demolition                                                                                             $150.00 

Tower Permits- New       $1000.00 

Tower Permits-Modification to existing     $500.00 



 

Underground Right-Of-Way Access 

Permit Application Fee       $50.00 

Additional Inspection / Review Fee     $50.00 

Underground Access Parallel ROW (2 Inspections)   $150.00 

Opening or Boring of a Paved Roadway     $650.00 

Penalty for Starting Work Without a Permit    $1,000.00 

 

Town Cemetery Fees: 

Blossomberg plat purchase                                      $600.00 resident   $1200.00 non-resident (Family) 

Blossomberg cremation burial plat Purchase       $150.00                   $300.00 Non-resident (Family) 

Cremation Burials                                                       $150.00 

Burial Fees                                                                    $500.00 

Administrative fee for burial buybacks                   $50.00 

 

Licenses: 

Dog License                                                                    $5.00 spayed/neutered  $10.00 unaltered 

Operators Licenses                                                       $20.00 includes provisional 

Picnic Liquor License (special event)     $10.00 

Firework permit special event                                    $50.00 

Business License  $45.00 / $25.00 late penalty fee in addition to licensing 
fee after February 1 

Business License (2nd noncompliance notification) $500.00 (in addition to the $25.00 penalty fee and 
$45.00 licensing fee) 

STR License $125.00 / $100.00 late penalty fee in addition to 
addition to licensing fee after February 1 

STR License (2nd noncompliance notification) $500.00 (in addition to the $100 first penalty and $125 
licensing fee)     

 



 

Liquor Licenses:    

 Class A Beer    $100.00 ($100 max per statute) 

 Class A Liquor    $250.00 ($500 max per statute) 

 Class B Beer    $100.00 ($100 max per statute) 

 Class B Liquor    $500.00 ($500 max per statute) 

 Class B Combination   $600.00 ($500 max on liquor per statute) 

 Class B Winery    $150.00 N/A issued by the state 

 Class C Wine    $200.00 

 Publication Fee    $ 40.00 

Cigarette License    $ 25.00 

  

Facility Rentals: 

Fire Station/Town Hall/Parks   $75 taxpayer, $200 deposit required 

$150 non taxpayer, $200 deposit required 

$ 25.00/8 hours for non-profit and local groups 

 

Parking: 

Seasonal Launch Trailer parking permit  $60/season (only short-term parking permitted) 

Harbor parking lot permit Included in facilities use fee for slip and mooring  
holders only  

Gibraltar Road Offsite Trailer Parking $100.00/season 

*Indicates fee set specifically by ordinance 

 



To:  Town Board 

From:  Staff 

Request: 

Approve Door County Highway Department estimate for bluff excavation/shoulder leveling on a portion 
of White Cliff Road.  

Background: 

Each year town staff and town board conduct a road review, from the review a list of repairs and road 
maintenance is formed.  A review of White Cliff Road revealed portions of the road along the bluff is too 
narrow and the shoulder is too steep.   This presents a safety issue.  

Analysis: 

The Highway Department estimate provides for the following work:  

• Approximate 1,050 ft of bluff excavation from 8479 White Cliff Road south to 8429 White Cliff 
Road to make the road wider 

• Build up the west side of shoulder with excavated materials 
• Bring up road gravel to build up shoulders  
• Slope side of roads 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the Town accept the estimate.  

Fiscal Impact: 

The fiscal impact to the Town would be $53,834.00.  There are budgeted and/or TUF funds available. 





To: Town Board 

From: Staff 

Request: 

Approve the Fahrner estimate for crack filling 

Background: 

Each year town staff and town board conduct a road review, from the review a list of repairs and road 
maintenance is formed. 

The list this year contained the areas of Spruce, Maple, Cottage Row (upper)High Ridge Road, and the 
parking lots at the Town Center and Fire Station. 

Analysis: 

Staff reached out to four contracting firms who work in the Gibraltar area, only Fahrner responded and 
submitted a quote of $18,276.00 

A second attempt to seek additional bids was met with no response again. 

Fahrner has completed work for the town in the past. Fahrner is completing work for our surrounding 
town neighbors and has bid reflecting economies of scale. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of the Fahrner estimate not to exceed 18,276.00 

Fiscal Impact: 

The Town Budgets $50,000 for road maintenance each year, the amount will be removed from this line 
item. 







To: Town Board 

From: Staff 

Request: 

Approve the initial resolution to vacate a portion of Base Line Road on Chambers Island 

Background: 

 Base Line Road was established as a straight road from the lighthouse to the beach on the east side of 
the island. The road ran directly through the now Chamber Island private airport. 

With the risk of road usage during a plane landing the road was diverted around the airport, a section of 
Baseline Road remains that dead ends into the airport runway.  

Analysis: 

Mr. Busch has asked if the town would consider vacating that section of the road and in exchange Mr. 
Busch would dedicate a road around the parcel to the private roads in the south. The vacation would 
allow for two small lots with limited building capability to be merged and the owner would have more 
flexibility and options. 

The Town will have no current or future need for this section of road.  

This is the start of the process, a public hearing will be scheduled, and additional information will be 
presented to the board and public. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of the initial resolution to vacate. 

Fiscal Impact: 

All fees and costs are the responsibility of the petitioner, and the petitioner is aware of the costs. 

No fiscal impact to the Town. 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-04 
 

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE DISCONTINUANCE OF A PORTION OF A BASE 
LINE ROAD IN THE TOWN OF GIBRALTAR, DOOR COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 
BY THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF GIBRALTAR: 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Gibraltar has determined pursuant to Section 66.1003 Wis. Stats. 
that the public interest requires that a portion of a portion of Base Line Road in the Town of 
Gibraltar, be discontinued as public lands and the same is set forth and shown on the map attached 
hereto and incorporated by reference herein for that portion of the proposed discontinued right-of-
way.  A scale map and legal description of  the area to be discontinued is attached as Exhibit A. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that it appears to be in the public interest that 

a portion of a public right-of-way be discontinued by the Town of Gibraltar as public lands and 
that a hearing be held on the discontinuance of the same on the 2nd day of October, 2024 at 7:00 
p.m. at the Town Hall for the Town of Gibraltar, 4097 Highway 42, Fish Creek, Wisconsin. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a notice of such hearing be served on the owners of 

the frontage of the lots and lands abutting on the portions of the lands sought to be discontinued at 
least thirty (30) days before such hearing, and that notice of such hearing be published in the 
official newspaper of the Town of Gibraltar once a week for three (3) successive weeks before the 
date of hearing.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town Attorney, upon adoption of this resolution, 

cause a Lis Pendens to be prepared and filed with the Register of Deeds, Door County, Wisconsin, 
pursuant to Section 840.11 Wisconsin Statutes. 
 

Approved this 7th day of August, 2024.  
 
      APPROVED:  

 

Ayes: __________    ________________________________________ 
      Steve Sohns, Town Chairman  
    
Nays: __________ 

      ATTEST: 

 

      _______________________________________ 
Laura Reetz, Town Clerk 

 
 
 



 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
A portion of Base Line Road located in Government Lot 1 of Section 5, Township 31 North,  
Range 26 East, Town of Gibraltar, Door County, Wisconsin and described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the North one-quarter corner of Section 5, thence N 88°05'01" E along the north line of 
Government Lot 1, 1472.90 feet to the intersection with the centerline of Base Line Road;  thence S 
32°10'45" E along said centerline 1071.55 feet to the point of beginning of a portion of Base Line Road to 
be vacated; thence S 56°11'00" W 33.01 feet; thence S 32°10'45" E  418.20 feet to the intersection with the 
south line of Government Lot 1; thence N 87°56'41" E along said south line of Government Lot 1 76.31 
feet;  thence N 32°10'45" E  456.38 feet; thence S 56°11'00" W  33.01 to the point of beginning. 
 
 



 

 

 

To:  Town Board  

From:  Staff  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Request: 

Appointment of Door County Costal Byways Council Representative 

Analysis: 

Due to the resignation of the previous clerk, Cindy Gutschow, there is a vacancy on the Costal Byways 
Council.   The new clerk, Laura Reetz, has indicated she would be willing to serve as the representative to 
the Council. 

 Recommendation:  

Staff recommends the Town Board appoint the Town Clerk as representative to the Door County Costal 
Byways Council representative.   

Fiscal Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact for this request. 



To: Town Board 

From: Staff 

Request: 

Budget Committee: Select board members and a member of the public to sit on the annual Budget 
committee.  

Background: 

To have direct involvement in the budget process.  Most communities similar in size have finance 
committees that assist in creating the annual budget. The committee vets the budget and final approval 
is given by the town board.   

Analysis: 

This process streamlines the budgetary process.  The town board would approval the final budget to go 
to the electors as always.  The Budget committee will sit down with staff and go through all budget items.  
Each department will bring their budgetary requests to staff in advance for analysis  

Recommendation: 

Staff will publish a request soliciting a member of the public to write a letter of interest to sit on the 
committee. This publication will request that the individual comes from a financial/accounting 
background. The board could approve the new member at the next board meeting and appoint two 
board members at this meeting or the next board meeting.  Since the majority of the meetings will be 
held during regular business hours, a normal town meeting per diem would be paid to budget 
committee members.  

Fiscal Impact: 

Paid meeting per diems. 

 

 



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 13:14 PM
ACCT

General Checking ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 8/01/2024

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:7/11/2024

7/31/2024 Page:

1,638.52dd Wisconsin Department of Revenue
WithholdingManual Check

7/24/2024

221.6445940 Richard, Mark
Pay period 06/01/2024 to 06/30/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

20,288.0045994 Rural Mutual Insurance
worker comp insurance

7/18/2024

610.0045995 USDA, APHIS
goose roundup, testing

7/18/2024

27,392.9245997 Quality State Oil7/25/2024

217.5545998 Post Office
technology bulk mailer

7/29/2024

3,100.0045999 Waterscape Designs
final payment 382187

7/29/2024

27,141.4146000 Quality State Oil
65366622

8/01/2024

217.5546001 Post Office
technology bulk mailer

8/01/2024

345.53draft Wisconsin Deferred Comp
Manual Check

7/11/2024

8,025.40draft Dept. of Employee Trust Funds
juneManual Check

7/22/2024

8,430.87draft EFTPS
Manual Check

7/15/2024

3,416.46draft Wisconsin Public Service
ElectricManual Check

7/12/2024

777.09draft Wisconsin Department of Revenue
sales txManual Check

7/12/2024

20,686.08draft Dept. of Employee Trust Funds
August insuranceManual Check

7/22/2024

10,053.66draft EFTPS
Manual Check

7/24/2024

350.33draft Wisconsin Deferred Comp
Manual Check

7/24/2024

6,154.09draft Nicolet National Bank
Manual Check

7/25/2024

23,322.85draft Nicolet Bank
Manual Check

7/24/2024

132.40draft Delta Dental of Wisconsin
Supplemental BillingManual Check

7/30/2024



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 23:14 PM
ACCT

General Checking ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 8/01/2024

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:7/11/2024

7/31/2024 Page:

3,071.92draft BP Products of North America, Inc
FuelManual Check

7/30/2024

465.00draft Cardmember Services
town web, website renewalManual Check

8/01/2024

739.71draft Charter Communications
Manual Check

7/18/2024

1,369.01V2504 Alpert, Lily
Pay period 06/24/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

3,040.26V2505 Austin, Chase
Pay period 06/24/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

1,971.28V2506 Bertges, Andrew
Pay period 06/23/2024 to 07/07/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

1,631.26V2507 Brower, Lindsey
Pay period 06/24/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

2,004.94V2508 Cain-Bieri, Theresa
Pay period 06/23/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

1,633.73V2509 Crowell, Andrew
Pay period 06/23/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

1,388.99V2510 Fairchild, John
Pay period 06/23/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

979.83V2511 Granner, Katherine
Pay period 06/24/2024 to 07/07/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

116.36V2512 Harvey, Ella
Pay period 06/24/2024 to 07/07/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

1,304.11V2513 Huberty, Colleen
Pay period 06/23/2024 to 07/07/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

1,661.47V2514 Linczmaier, Kurt
Pay period 06/23/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

974.67V2515 Murre, Quentin
Pay period 06/24/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

166.23V2516 Neville, Jon
Pay period 06/24/2024 to 07/07/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

1,434.45V2517 Pothast, Michael
Pay period 06/24/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

1,435.09V2518 Reetz, Laura
Pay period 06/23/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

1,275.82V2519 Reinert, Dustin
Pay period 06/23/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 33:14 PM
ACCT

General Checking ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 8/01/2024

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:7/11/2024

7/31/2024 Page:

1,836.09V2520 Roesch, Ryan
Pay period 06/23/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

232.73V2521 Thomas, David
Pay period 06/24/2024 to 07/07/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

2,713.23V2522 Thyssen, Travis
Pay period 06/23/2024 to 07/07/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

33.25V2523 Walker, Christ
Pay period 06/24/2024 to 07/07/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

585.97V2524 Witczak, Evan
Pay period 06/24/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

1,080.50V2525 Witczak, Michael
Pay period 06/24/2024 to 07/06/2024Manual Check

7/12/2024

974.28V2526 Alpert, Lily
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/21/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

1,893.18V2527 Austin, Chase
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/21/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

1,971.28V2528 Bertges, Andrew
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/20/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

1,553.76V2529 Brower, Lindsey
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/21/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

2,049.22V2530 Cain-Bieri, Theresa
Pay period 07/07/2024 to 07/20/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

1,693.26V2531 Crowell, Andrew
Pay period 07/07/2024 to 07/20/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

1,443.69V2532 Fairchild, John
Pay period 07/07/2024 to 07/20/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

1,203.22V2533 Granner, Katherine
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/21/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

166.23V2534 Houck, Mary
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/21/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

1,304.11V2535 Huberty, Colleen
Pay period 07/07/2024 to 07/20/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

1,770.84V2536 Linczmaier, Kurt
Pay period 07/07/2024 to 07/20/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

1,098.98V2537 Murre, Quentin
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/21/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

232.73V2538 Neville, Jon
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/21/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 43:14 PM
ACCT

General Checking ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 8/01/2024

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:7/11/2024

7/31/2024 Page:

1,199.47V2539 Pothast, Michael
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/21/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

1,486.36V2540 Reetz, Laura
Pay period 07/07/2024 to 07/20/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

1,327.20V2541 Reinert, Dustin
Pay period 07/07/2024 to 07/20/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

4,484.46V2542 Roesch, Ryan
Pay period 07/07/2024 to 07/20/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

166.23V2543 Thomas, David
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/21/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

2,713.23V2544 Thyssen, Travis
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/20/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

1,042.74V2545 Witczak, Evan
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/21/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

631.00V2546 Witczak, Michael
Pay period 07/08/2024 to 07/21/2024Manual Check

7/26/2024

226,073.72Grand Total



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 53:14 PM
ACCT

General Checking ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 8/01/2024

______________________________________________________________________________________
Amount

From Account:7/11/2024

7/31/2024 Page:

118,612.83Total Expenditure from Fund # 100 - GENERAL FUND

23,322.85Total Expenditure from Fund # 300 - DEBT SERVICES

82,932.04Total Expenditure from Fund # 501 - DOCK FUND

1,206.00Total Expenditure from Fund # 601 - AIRPORT FUND

226,073.72Total Expenditure from all Funds



In Progress Checks - Quick Report - ALL 13:12 PM

ACCTALL Checks by Payee

General Checking

Dated From:

Thru Account:Thru:

______________________________________________________________________________________
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:

7/31/2024 Page:

500.00Andrew Farah
returned slip waiting list

7/31/2024

1,308.33Associated Appraisal Consultants, Inc.
august

7/31/2024

683.28BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC
gauges, stethoscope, bandages etc

7/31/2024

2,136.00Conway, Olejiniczak & Jerry, S.C.
record search, bluff ln, airport, chambe

7/31/2024

639.51Door County IT
report support, bookmarks

7/31/2024

492.96Door County Treasurer
MFL Due to county, withdrawn

7/22/2024

134.88Door County Treasurer
signs

7/31/2024

760.00Door Guard Security Systems
2024-2025 Monitoring

7/31/2024

262.40Fastenal Company
bulk fasteners

7/31/2024

233.05Impact Northeast WI
copier meterand monthly fee

7/31/2024

444.50La Vine's Ice Company, LLC7/31/2024

85.00LaForce
keys

7/31/2024

1,082.00Lawn Doctor
Spruce park 2857

7/31/2024

119.51Leon & Sharon Zellner
pvc, sharpening, menards

7/31/2024

2,429.00Monroe Truck Equipment
hinge and hoiset repairs 2016 silverado

7/31/2024

471.00Northern Door Communications, Inc
Radio

7/31/2024

35.11Peninsula Pulse
legals, ord 2024-04

7/31/2024

400.00Portside Builders
return bond 8914 rydeen Rd

7/31/2024

2,108.97Reinhard Plumbing, Inc
replace hot water heater

7/31/2024



In Progress Checks - Quick Report - ALL 23:12 PM

ACCTALL Checks by Payee

General Checking

Dated From:

Thru Account:Thru:

______________________________________________________________________________________
Voucher Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:

7/31/2024 Page:

502.59Riesterer & Schnell Inc
blet alignment jd

7/31/2024

455.62State Chemical Solutions
fragrance paks

7/31/2024

1,913.74Statewide Services
Pollution Liability

7/31/2024

5,057.00Summerset Marine Construction
barge, tug, hauling and gravel CI roads

7/31/2024

289.65The Uniform Shoppe
clothing

7/31/2024

88.99Van's Fire & Safety, Inc
Extinguisher servicing

7/31/2024

1,687.07Warner-Wexel, LLC
tp, gloves, cleaner, paper towel etc

7/31/2024

18.48West Marine Pro
1094

7/31/2024

192.75WI Dept. of Justice - TIME
Time access

7/31/2024

160.29Wisconsin Building Supply
2643718

7/31/2024

40.45Wisconsin Dept of Transportation
bike ped feasibility study

7/31/2024

24,732.13Grand Total



In Progress Checks - Quick Report - ALL 33:12 PM

ACCTALL Checks by Payee

General Checking

Dated From:

Thru Account:Thru:

______________________________________________________________________________________
Amount

From Account:

7/31/2024 Page:

21,873.89Total Expenditure from Fund # 100 - GENERAL FUND

2,858.24Total Expenditure from Fund # 501 - DOCK FUND

24,732.13Total Expenditure from all Funds


	4. 2024 08 07 agenda 
	GIBRALTAR TOWN CENTER
	DEVIATION IN ORDER MAY OCCUR


	5. 2024 07 10 minutes
	5. 2024 07 25 Special Minutes 
	TOWN OF GIBRALTAR
	THURSDAY, JULY 25, 2024
	GIBRALTAR TOWN DOCK

	10 AFG grant acceptance recommendation
	10. EMW-2023-FG-04043 - Award Package
	11. Operator License recommendation
	11. Operators 2024-25
	12. Special Event Request Evergreen Mini Golf 8-31-24 and 9-26-24
	13. Special Event Request Hands On Pop Up Art Market
	14. Hangar A-3 recommendation
	16. Lease Agreement Hanger A-3 Christ Walker
	17. Highland Speed study
	18. Approve Hill Street Bluff Lane Change Order
	18. Advance Construction  PARTIAL SIGNED - Change Order 4
	18. Advance Partial Signed - Pay App 6
	18. Approve Change order Hill and Bluff

	19. Consideration of amendment to extend lease
	19. Amendment to Extend Easement CI
	19. recommendaiton fire station land extension

	20. ARPA funds recommendation
	21. Coco-Kiki recommendation
	22. Choke Cherry recommendation
	22.1  Ord. 2022-30 Speed limits identified and traffic flow, amended 082024
	23. Consideration of Ordiance 2024-05
	24. Recommendation to Amend Fee Schedule
	24.1 2024 Town of Gibraltar fee schedule
	25. Recommendation White Cliff Road
	25. White Cliff Road
	26. Fahrner road repair
	26.1  Fahrner Estimate Road mainteance crack filling
	27. Baseline Rd. Vacation rec.
	27.1  2024-04 Regarding Discontinuance of a portion of Base Line Road 
	RESOLUTION REGARDING THE DISCONTINUANCE OF A PORTION OF A BASE LINE ROAD IN THE TOWN OF GIBRALTAR, DOOR COUNTY, WISCONSIN

	29. costal byways recommendation
	30. Request Budget Committee
	32.Bills paid 07112024-08012024
	32.Pending payment of bills 07112024-07312024

